
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

CITY OF FAIRWAY, KANSAS 

5240 Belinder Rd. 

Monday, October 27, 2025 – 6:00 P.M. 

 

1. INTRODUCE NEW COMMISSIONER 

Michael Tamburini 

 

2. MINUTES 

Approval of minutes from meeting held September 29, 2025. 

 

3. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Site Plan Review – 3517 Eastvale, Fairway, KS as submitted by D. Lance Larson, 

Property Owner, request exception to greenspace requirement for an addition and pool 

– application withdrawn 

b. Site Plan Review - 5500 Canterbury, Fairway, KS as submitted by Brian Standley of 

James Engle Custom Homes, Property Owner, request for new Single-Family 

Residence with exceptions to the window hierarchy on the side elevations. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Site Plan Review – 5300 Pawnee Ln, Fairway, KS as submitted by Spencer and Logan 

Dean, Property Owners, request exception to fence location on a corner lot 

b. Site Plan Review – 6018 Buena Vista St, Fairway KS as submitted by Adam Anthony 

Pfeifer of APD Studios on behalf Matt Adam Development Co. Inc., Property Owner, 

request for a new Single-Family Residence with exceptions to the window hierarchy 

on front and side elevations 

c. Review Planning Commission By-Laws 

 

 

5. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS 

a. Set next meeting date for November 24, 2025. 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT 



THESE MINUTES ARE NOT FOR PUBLIC DISSEMINATION UNTIL THEY HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY THE 

FAIRWAY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

  

 

MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF FAIRWAY, KANSAS 

 

The Planning Commission of the City of Fairway, Kansas (the "Commission") conducted a meeting 

on Monday, September 29, 2025.  The meeting was called to order at 6:00 P.M. 

Present: Commissioners Ben Zwick, Jeremy Deeken, Rorric Pfalzgraf, Michael Hoelscher.   

 

Absent: Commissioner Ron Denton. 

 

Presiding: Chair Wendy Bailey.  

 

Staff Present: City Clerk Abbie Aldridge; Zoning Counsel Anna Krstulic; Community 

Development Director Basil Alani. 

 

Visitors: Austin Gates, 5734 Windsor Drive; Adam Piper, 12214 West 79th Terrace, 

Lenexa, Kansas. 

 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Chair Bailey asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the August 25, 2025 meeting. 

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Zwick to approve the August 25, 2025 

minutes.  Commissioner Deeken seconded the motion.   

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

 

a. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 5734 WINDSOR DRIVE, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED 

BY AUSTIN GATES, PROPERTY OWNER, REQUEST EXCEPTIONS TO THE 

GREENSPACE REQUIREMENT, WITH A WAIVER TO THE REQUIREMENT OF A 

WATERSHED ANALYSIS, AND THE DRIVEWAY WIDTH TO EXCEED 20 FEET. 

 

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report.  

 

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet.  This item was continued 

from the August 25, 2025 Planning Commission meeting and the applicant has submitted 

revised plans showing the dimensions as requested. The lot size is 21,227 square feet and the 

existing greenspace is 14,458 square feet (68.1%).  The allowable greenspace is 14,420 square 

feet (68%).  The requested addition of a driveway will add 200 square feet with a proposed 

greenspace of 14,258 square feet (67.25%).   

 

The applicant is seeking a waiver to the watershed analysis because reducing the existing 

greenspace by 200 square feet will have no effect on drainage.  The applicant is also seeking a 

waiver for the driveway width.  The maximum width allowed in front of the front building line 

is 20 feet.  The site plan shows that at 34 feet forward of the front building line, the driveway 

transitions from 16 to 24.5 feet.   



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

2 

 

 

  

 

  

 

Staff is not supportive of the requested exceptions.  Should the Planning Commission approve 

the site plan and requested exceptions, staff recommends the following conditions:    

 

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and 

approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code 

and other incorporated technical codes. 

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one 

year of the date of Planning Commission approval. 

5. Per Right of Way Specialist Rick Allen, the driveway addition needs to be 16 feet 

away from the right of way tree. 

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for staff.  Hearing none, she asked the applicant to 

address the Commission.  

 

Austin Gates, 5734 Windsor Drive, stated that he is the applicant.  He explained that the 

extension of the driveway is to get more area for parking.  There is a wall in that location and 

the driveway is narrow so if a car is parked there, it is difficult to get another car around them.  

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were additional questions for the applicant.  Hearing none, she 

asked for further discussion from the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that he is in favor of granting the exceptions for greenspace and 

the driveway width.  He also agrees that no watershed analysis should be required.   

 

Chair Bailey added that the Commission could require that a slope be installed toward the 

existing driveway, in which case it would not impact the neighbors.  

 

Director Alani explained that because of the way the land slopes, water is already going to go 

downhill to the street.  

 

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion from the Commission.  Hearing none, she asked for 

a motion. 

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to approve the Site Plan – 

5735 Windsor Drive, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Austin Gates, Property Owner, 

request exceptions to the greenspace requirement, with a waiver to the requirement of 

a watershed analysis, and the driveway width to exceed 20 feet, subject to staff 

recommendations. Commissioner Hoelscher seconded the motion.    

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

3. NEW BUSINESS 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

3 

 

 

  

 

  

 

a. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 3517 EASTVALE, FIARWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED BY D. 

LANCE LARSON, PROPERTY OWNER, REQUEST EXCEPTION TO GREENSPACE 

REQUIREMENT FOR AN ADDITION AND POOL. 

 

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report. 

 

City Clerk Aldridge stated that the applicant has requested that this item be continued to the 

October 27, 2025 Planning Commission meeting as they intend to make revisions to the site 

plan.  

 

Chair Bailey asked for a motion. 

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to continue the Site Plan – 

3517 Eastvale, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by D. Lance Larson, property owner, 

request exception to greenspace requirement for an addition and pool, to the October 

27, 2025 Planning Commission meeting.  Commissioner Zwick seconded the motion.    

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

b. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 5516 CANTERBURY, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED 

BY ADAM ANTHONY PFEIFER OF APD STUDIOS ON BEHALF OF MATT ADAM 

DEVELOPMENT CO. INC., PROPERTY OWNER, REQUEST FOR A NEW SINGLE-

FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH EXCEPTIONS TO THE WINDOW HIERARCHY ON 

FRONT AND SIDE ELEVATIONS, AND DRIVEWAY WIDTH. 

 

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report. 

 

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet.  The applicant has submitted 

a request for a new single-family residence.  The height of the structure will be 29 feet 11 3/8 

inches from the existing grade.  The watershed analysis shows the proposed hardscape will 

increase the street drainage and will decrease the drainage to the rear.  There will be no impact 

to neighboring properties and storm detention is not required.   

 

The applicant is seeking an exception for the front, right and left elevation facades to have 

lower windows smaller than the upper windows.  The applicant is also seeking an exception to 

exceed the driveway width.  The Code allows a maximum width for driveways of 20 feet.  The 

driveway will transition from 10-foot width to a maximum width of 22 feet 3 inches at the front 

building line.  

 

Staff is not opposed to the application and requested exceptions. Should the Planning 

Commission approve the site plan and requested exceptions, staff recommends the following 

conditions:    

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

4 

 

 

  

 

  

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and 

approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code 

and other incorporated technical codes. 

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one 

year of the date of Planning Commission approval. 

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for staff.   

 

Chair Bailey asked for clarification of the window hierarchy issues on the elevations.   

 

Director Alani explained that one elevation has windows smaller than the upper windows, and 

two elevations have windows on the second floor and no windows below.  

 

Chair Bailey explained that the Code states that windows shall be stacked for two story facades 

with lower windows aligning with upper windows and have a hierarchy with lower windows 

being larger than the upper windows.  

 

There is a discussion concerning the exception request for the driveway width.  Director Alani 

explained that a portion of the driveway goes beyond the 20 feet maximum to 22 feet 3 inches.  

He added that the width is required because the garage doors are not on the same elevation 

with one being recessed so they need the extra width.  There is a wider gap than normal between 

the two garage doors.  

 

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that he is not opposed to the window hierarchy or the driveway 

exceptions.   

 

Commissioner Zwick had questions concerning the floor plan and garage space that is closest 

to the house.   

 

Chair Bailey asked the applicant to address the Commission. 

 

Adam Piper, 12214 West 79th Terrace, Lenexa, Kansas, discussed the floor plan, explaining 

that to the left there is a large wall that comes over and essentially hides the front door.  Behind 

the wall are stairs to the front door.  Recessed from that about 7 feet is the garage door that is 

closest to the end of the wall.  The garage door on the right comes forward about 4 feet.  The 

garage doors are pushed away from the roof eve.  Because of that offset, they have added some 

width to the garage as a structural aspect and aesthetics so not to make it look very skinny and 

very tall.  The garage wall is 22 feet 3 inches wide and knowing that the driveway was over 

the maximum width allowed, they tried to pull the flare off of the driveway as close to the 

house as they could so that it would not be visually impactful from the street.  

 

Responding to Commissioner Zwick’s question, Mr. Piper stated that the distance between the 

two garage doors is 4 feet 3 inches and the offset is 3 feet front to back.  



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

5 

 

 

  

 

  

 

Responding to Commissioner Pfalzgraf’s question, Mr. Piper stated that it is a matter of 

resolving the portable frames on either side of the garage doors and also to make sure that the 

garage door on the right remains centered in the façade.  

 

Responding to Chair Bailey’s question, Mr. Piper confirmed that the concrete extends beyond 

the edge of the garage wall on the right side about 12 inches. He does not think that concrete 

can be pulled in further.  

 

Responding to Commissioner Zwick’s question, Mr. Piper stated that they did not consider 

snugging up the 4 feet 3 inches between the two garage doors because that would result in 

pinching space in the garages and the right garage door would be off center.  This would also 

cause issues with the tandem depth in the garage. The garage on the left is only about 1 ½ feet 

from the garage wall.  He added that they could add some landscaping around the angled 

portion of the driveway to visually reduce the extended width of the driveway.  

 

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that the explanation seems logical to him for the driveway 

width. 

 

Commissioner Deeken thanked Mr. Piper for explaining the rationale behind the design. 

 

Commissioner Zwick stated that he is not necessarily opposed to the request but was trying to 

see if there was an alternative way to reduce the width.  

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were additional questions for the applicant.  Hearing none, she 

asked for a motion.  

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to approve the Site Plan 

Review – 5516 Canterbury, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Adam Anthony Pfeifer 

of APD Studios on behalf of Matt Adam Development Co. Inc., Property Owner, 

request for a new single-family residence with exceptions to the window hierarchy on 

front and side elevations, and driveway width, subject to staff recommendations. 

Commissioner Deeken seconded the motion.   

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

c. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 5500 CANTERBURY, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED 

BY BRIAN STANDLEY OF JAMES ENGLE CUSTOM HOMES, PROPERTY OWNER, 

REQUESTE FOR NEW SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE WITH EXCEPTIONS TO THE 

WINDOW HEIRARCHY ON THE SIDE ELEVATIONS. 

  

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report. 

 

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet.  Applicant submitted a 

request for a new single-family residence.  The height of the structure will be 29 feet 9 inches 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

6 

 

 

  

 

  

from the existing grade.  The watershed analysis shows the proposed hardscape will increase 

the street drainage and the rear drainage will decrease.  There will be no impact to the 

neighboring properties and storm detention is not required. The applicant is seeking an 

exception for the right and left elevation facades to have lower windows smaller than the upper 

windows.  The applicant will need to install two large shade trees in the right-of-way.  

 

Staff is not opposed to the application and requested exceptions. Should the Planning 

Commission approve the site plan and requested exceptions, staff recommends the following 

conditions:    

 

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and 

approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code 

and other incorporated technical codes. 

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one 

year of the date of Planning Commission approval. 

5. Need to install two large shade trees. 

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for staff.   

 

There is a discussion concerning the location of the windows that need the hierarchy exception. 

 

Chair Bailey noted that the applicant is not present at the meeting.   

 

There is a lengthy discussion concerning the fact that there are no windows in what looks like 

the great room on the floor plan.  Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that it looks like a big wall 

with no windows and he thinks the intent is not to have a giant empty wall.  The plan does not 

show a chimney but if there was a chimney there, it would provide some architectural feature 

and might make more sense.  Chair Bailey noted that the chimney may be enclosed.  

Commissioner Zwick pointed out that there could also be bookshelves there and perhaps that 

is why there are no windows. 

 

Responding to Chair Bailey’s question, City Clerk Aldridge explained that the Code requires 

architectural relief for areas over 600 square feet and the area in question is 431 square feet so 

that is acceptable.  

 

Commissioner Hoelscher also pointed out that the sliding door on the left side of the front 

façade does not align with the window above it.   He thinks the sliding door should be stacked 

and aligned on the left side with the window above it.  

 

Chair Bailey also stated that the windows on the rear do not align.  

 

There is also a discussion concerning window hierarchy issues on the right elevation.  

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

7 

 

 

  

 

  

Director Alani pointed out that this plan was submitted a few months ago with the same 

exceptions and in that situation, the Commission granted the exceptions.  He added that this 

plan has been submitted and approved several times. 

 

Regardless of whether this plan has been previously submitted, Chair Bailey believes that the 

Commission should talk through the issues.  

 

Director Alani explained that the window hierarchy rule is that the windows on the first floor 

have to be the same size or smaller than the windows on the upper level.  If there are no 

windows on the first level and there are windows on the second level, he does not think that 

would meet the intent of the zoning Ordinance.  

 

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that he is reviewing previous site plans to try to find the similar 

site plans that have been approved.  Director Alani explained that there are at least three 

previous plans – two are under construction and one of them is a neighbor to Commissioner 

Zwick.  Commissioner Zwick noted that the garage is flipped on his neighbor’s home and he 

has not noticed the hierarchy of the windows.  

 

For the right elevation, Commissioner Zwick stated that the applicant is seeking an exception 

because the smaller rectangular windows on the bottom floor are smaller than the windows 

above them.  In addition, Chair Bailey pointed out that those windows are not aligned or 

stacked with the windows above them; however, she is not really concerned about the windows 

on the right elevation. 

 

As to the left elevation, Commissioner Zwick stated there are upper windows but no lower 

windows.  

 

Commissioner Zwick asked if there were concerns with the sliding door and the windows 

above it.  Director Alani explained he did not consider the sliding door alignment with the 

windows above it to be an issue because the sliding door is considered part of the basement.   

Commissioner Pfalzgraf is not opposed to the sliding door.   

 

Chair Bailey asked if the Commission would like to continue this item to review the previous 

site plans to confirm that it was approved and in addition, perhaps the applicant could be 

present to discuss the site plan.   

 

Commissioner Deeken agreed, and if the Commission has not previously approved the plan, at 

least the applicant would be present to explain their rationale and defend their exception 

requests.  

 

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that he located the previous site plan for a home on El Monte.  

That home also had a window hierarchy issue; however, there are smaller windows on the main 

floor above what would be the bookcases.  Therefore, the previous site plan is not exactly the 

same as the current application. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

8 

 

 

  

 

  

Chair Bailey suggested that this item be continued so that more research can be done and the 

applicant can attend the meeting to explain the site plan. 

 

Chair Bailey requested a motion to continue this item to the October 27, 2025 meeting 

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Deeken to continue the Site Plan 

Review – 5500 Canterbury, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Brian Standley of James 

Engle Custom Homes, Property Owner, request for new single-family residence with 

exceptions to the window hierarchy on the side elevations, to the October 27, 2025 

Planning Commission meeting.  Commissioner Pfalzgraf seconded the motion.   

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

d. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 6119 LOCKTON LANE, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS SUBMITTED 

BY JAY CHILDS OF BUILT TO FIT REMODELS ON BEHALF OF STANLEY 

MCCLURG AND KELLI KRASE, PROPERTY OWNERS, REQUEST EXCEPTION FOR 

GENERATOR LOCATION. 

  

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report. 

 

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet.  The applicant submitted a 

request to install a generator in the side yard next to the house, approximately 18 feet from the 

side property line.  The applicant meets all requirements for exceptions for the generator. 

 

Staff is not opposed to the requested exception.  If the Planning Commission recommends 

approval, staff recommends the following conditions:        

 

1. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

2. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code 

and other incorporated technical codes. 

3. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one 

year of the date of Planning Commission approval. 

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for the staff. 

 

Responding to Commissioner Zwick’s question, City Clerk Aldridge stated that the City did 

not receive any feedback from the neighbor.  

 

Responding to Chair Bailey’s question, Director Alani stated that he has a program that 

measures the decibels of a generator.   He checked the decibels and the generator needs to be 

at least 15 feet away from the property line.  

 

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion from the Commission.  Hearing none, she asked for 

a motion. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

9 

 

 

  

 

  

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Zwick to approve the Site Plan – 6119 

Lockton Lane, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Jay Childs of Built To Fit Remodels 

on behalf of Stanley McClurg and Kelli Krase, Property Owners, request exception for 

generator location, subject to staff recommendations.  Commissioner Pfalzgraf 

seconded the motion.  

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

e. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 6220 REINHARDT DRIVE, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS 

SUBMITTED BY CHUCK ERICKSON, PROPERTY OWNER, REQUEST EXCEPTION 

TO GREENSPACE REQUIREMENT FOR POOL AND PATIO. 

  

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report. 

 

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet.  The home was built in 

2013.  The applicant is requesting an exception to the greenspace requirement for a new 

addition and construction of a pool and pool deck.  The applicant is removing the circular 

driveway.  The lot size is 30,556 square feet and the existing greenspace is 20,924 square feet 

(68.5%).  The required greenspace is 21,556 square feet (70.5%).  The proposed greenspace 

will be 21,334 square feet (69.8%).  Pursuant to the new watershed analysis, an infiltration 

trench is not required.  

 

Staff is not supportive of the exception request.  Should the Planning Commission approve the 

site plan and request exception to greenspace, staff recommends the following conditions:        

 

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and 

approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code 

and other incorporated technical codes. 

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one 

year of the date of Planning Commission approval. 

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for the staff.  Hearing none, she asked if the applicant 

was present at the meeting.  Noting that the applicant was not present at the meeting, Chair 

Bailey asked if there were concerns to the application.  

 

Commissioner Pfalzgraf stated that he supports the request. 

 

Commissioner Zwick is also supportive, stating that he appreciates that the applicants made 

some concessions to the driveway. 

 

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion.  Hearing none, she asked for a motion.  

 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

10 

 

 

  

 

  

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Zwick to approve the Site Plan – 6220 

Reinhardt Drive, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Chuck Erickson, Property Owner, 

request exception to greenspace requirement for a pool and patio, subject to staff 

recommendations.  Commissioner Pfalzgraf seconded the motion.  

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

f. SITE PLAN REVIEW – 5720 REINHARDT DRIVE, FAIRWAY, KANSAS, AS 

SUBMITTED BY MICHELLE WIEDERIN OF THE SOLAR GUYS ON BEHALF OF BEN 

SOSINSKI, PROPERTY OWNER, REQUEST TO INSTALL ROOF MOUNTED SOLAR 

PANELS. 

  

Chair Bailey asked for the staff report. 

 

Director Alani referred the Commission to the report in the packet.  The applicant submitted a 

request to install roof mounted solar panels.  The plans did not identify any tree removal and 

meet all requirements. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the roof mounted solar panels.  Should the Planning 

Commission approve the application, staff recommends the following conditions:        

 

1. One electronic complete set of plans must be submitted for plan review and 

approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City Ordinances, the 2012 International Building Code 

and other incorporated technical codes. 

4. Application and approval are void if the building permit is not obtained within one 

year of the date of Planning Commission approval. 

 

Chair Bailey asked if there were questions for the staff.   

 

Chair Bailey thinks that structurally, the project looks good and the solar panels are flush 

mounted so she has no concerns.   

 

Chair Bailey asked for further discussion.  Hearing none, she asked for a motion.  

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to approve the Site Plan – 

5720 Reinhardt Drive, Fairway, Kansas, as submitted by Michelle Wiederin of The 

Solar Guys on behalf of Ben Sosinski, Property Owner, request to install roof mounted 

solar panels, subject to staff recommendations.  Commissioner Pfalzgraf seconded the 

motion.  

 

The motion carried unanimously.  

 

4. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS 



PLANNING COMMISSION 

 SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

11 

 

 

  

 

  

 

a. NEXT MEETING 

 

City Clerk Aldridge stated that the next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for 

October 27, 2025. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chair Bailey asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Commissioner Pfalzgraf to adjourn.  Commissioner 

Deeken seconded the motion. 

  

The motion carried unanimously.  
 

Hearing no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:57 P.M. 

  

 

______________________________ 

Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk 



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission 

October 27, 2025 

 

TO:   Chair Wendy Bailey 

     Planning Commission Members 

   Anna Krstulic, Zoning Counsel 

 

FROM:    Basil Alani, Community Development Director 

Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk 

 

APPLICANT:    Brian Standley on behalf of Owner James Engle Custom Homes LLC      
           
PROPERTY: 5500 Canterbury Rd, FAIRWAY LOT 6 BLK 6 FAC-0338 

ZONING: R-1 Single Family Residential District 

PROJECT: Site Plan Review – New principal building with exceptions to window hierarchy on 

the right & left elevations 

 

BACKGROUND: 

This application was continued from the September 29th, 2025, Planning Commission meeting. The 

applicant submitted revised plans (Sheet No. 6) with added windows. Applicant submitted a request for 

new single-family residence. The plans show the height of the structure is 29 feet 9 inches from the existing 

grade of 912.9 feet. The watershed analysis shows the proposed hardscape to increase the street drainage 

Q100 runoff from 0 to 0.76 CFS and the rear drainage to decrease the Q100 from 1.92 CFS to 1.2 CFS. 

The applicant requests approval of the project. 

The applicant is seeking an exception for the right & left elevation façades to have the lower aligning 

with upper windows, and lower windows smaller than the upper windows. 

APPLICABLE CODE PROVISIONS: 

Code Section 15-235. – Site plan review. 

(a) Applicants. The following development activities shall require a site plan review subject to the procedures and 

criteria contained in the zoning regulations. No building permit shall be issued until the required review and 

approval of a site plan has occurred. 

Development Activity Preliminary Final 

In the R-1 district, any construction activity that either: 

. . . 

• Adds an entirely new principal building to a lot; or 

. . . 

No Yes 

 

(3) Final site plan. Nine (9) copies of the final site plan shall be submitted in support of the application for final site 

approval. The final site plan shall contain the following information and meet the following requirements: 



 

15. Preliminary drainage design and location and existing drainage facilities. 

16. For all R-1 activity defined as a new house or that adds to or replaces a portion of the principal building on 

more than fifty percent (50%) of the existing principal building footprint, and for all new building 

construction in the B-1, B-2, B3P, and R2P zoned districts, a watershed analysis stamped by a licensed 

Kansas Engineer shall be required. The watershed analysis shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

(i) Baseline watershed level as property exists before any demolition. 

(ii) Watershed level with proposed changes including new construction, hardscape and specific changes to 

grades. 

(iii) Impact to immediate surrounding properties. 

(iv) A determination that the new construction will not adversely impact adjoining or downstream property. 

 

The watershed analysis shows the proposed hardscape increased from 32.1% to 40% and states there is 

no impact to the neighboring properties and storm detention is not required. With the new revised plans 

the new hardscape is 39.9%. 

 

Code Section 15-296. – Dimension Standards 

Meets all requirements 

 

Code Section 15-297. – Site Design Standards. 

 (2) Greenspace requirement 

e. Large shade trees. Large shade trees shall be maintained or established between the front building line 

and street in accordance with the following requirements:  

1. All lots shall have at least one (1) large shade tree for every forty feet (40') of street 
frontage, or fraction thereof. Existing large shade trees, including any large shade trees in 
the right-of-way, may be counted towards this requirement.  

2. Removal of an existing large shade tree that results in less than one (1) per forty feet (40') 
of street frontage shall require replacement of two (2) new large shade trees for each one 
(1) tree removed.  

3. Large shade trees shall be planted between the front building line and the street.  

4. Large shade trees species shall be selected from the "Great Trees for the Kansas City 
Region" guide and the "Large Trees for the Landscape" list.  

5. Any new trees required to be planted shall be at least three inch (3") caliper.  

Applicant will need to install 2 large shade trees 

   

(5) Building façades. The following design standards shall be used to organize the composition of façades 
consistent with the architectural style of the home and provide details that relate buildings to the 
neighborhood streetscapes and adjacent sites. 

b. All façades shall have window or door openings covering at least fifteen percent (15%) of the façade 

above grade. The shape, style, and placement of windows and doors shall not be inconsistent with the 

architectural style of the home. In the event of an addition to an existing structure, this requirement 

may apply to the least restrictive of: (1) the entire façade facing the same direction (e.g., front, rear or 

either side façade), including both the addition and the existing structure; or (2) only the façade of the 

addition being built and not any part of the existing structure that is not being modified as part of the 

construction project. (See Section 15-438, Figure 15-438-5.) 



 

1. Windows shall have a vertical or square proportion, although groups of windows may be 
joined in a horizontal proportion; 

2. Windows shall be stacked for two-story façades with lower windows aligning with upper 
windows, and have a hierarchy with lower windows being larger than upper windows; 

The applicant is seeking an exception for the right & left elevation façades for having the lower windows 
aligning with upper windows, and lower windows smaller than the upper windows  

 

Code Section 15-235. – Site plan review. 

(d) Review criteria. In considering any application for site plan approval, the review body shall give 

consideration to the criteria stated below, to the extent they are pertinent to the particular application. In 

addition, the review body may consider other factors which may be relevant to a particular application. 

(1) Whether the site is capable of accommodating the buildings, parking areas and drives with appropriate 

open space. 

(2) Whether the plan provides for safe and easy ingress, egress and internal traffic circulation, and 

adequate access vehicles, pedestrians, and emergency service to all parts of the property and of all 

buildings and structures on the property. 

(3) Whether the plan is consistent with good land planning and site engineering design principles. 

(4) Whether an appropriate degree of harmony will prevail between the architectural quality and building 

materials of the proposed buildings and those of the surrounding neighborhood. 

(5) The character of the neighborhood. 

(6) The zoning and use of nearby properties, and the extent to which the proposed use would be in harmony 

with such zoning and uses. 

(7) The suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted under the applicable zoning 

district regulations. 

(8) The length of time the property has remained vacant. 

(9) The extent to which approval of the application would detrimentally affect nearby properties. 

(10) The extent to which the proposed use and plan would substantially harm the value of nearby properties. 

(11) The extent to which the proposed use and plan would adversely affect the capacity or safety of that 

portion of the road network influenced by the use, or present parking problems in the vicinity of the 

property. 

(12) The extent to which utilities and services, including, but not limited to, sewers, water service, police and 

fire protection, and parks and recreation facilities, are available and adequate to serve the proposed use. 

(13) The extent to which the proposed use and plan would create excessive stormwater runoff, air pollution, 

water pollution, noise pollution or other environmental harm. 

(14) The extent to which there is a need for the use in the community. 

(15) The economic impact of the proposed use and plan on the community. 

(16) The ability of the applicant to satisfy any requirements applicable to the specific use imposed pursuant 

to the zoning district regulations. 

(17) The gain, if any, to the public health, safety and welfare due to denial of the application as compared to 

the hardship imposed upon the landowner, if any, as a result of denial of the application. 

(18) The conformance of the proposed use and plan to the City's Comprehensive Plan, and other adopted 

planning policies. 

(19) The recommendation of professional staff, or other professionals retained by the City to evaluate the 

application. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 



 

Staff is not opposed to the application and exceptions requests. If the Planning Commission grants 

approval, staff recommends the following conditions:   

1. One electronic set must be submitted for plan review and approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City ordinances and the 2012 International Building Code, the 2012 

International Building Code and other incorporated technical codes.   

4. Application and approval are void if a building permit is not obtained within one year from the date of 

Planning Commission approval. 

5. Need to install 2 large shade trees 

 











ROBERT C. WESSEL P.E.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS
4085 NORTH KOLB ROAD
TUCSON, ARIZONA 85750
913-207-6118   robertcwessel47@gmail.com

August 14, 2025

STORM  DRAINAGE  REPORT
5500 Canterbury
Fairway, Kansas

5500 Canterbury, Fairway, Kansas is an existing 8,105 s.f. single family residential site, Lot 6, Block
6, Fairway Subdivison.  The existing house is to be replaced with a larger home.  The entire site
drains to the rear, then  south and west through rear yards and between houses onto State Park
Road and Falmouth Road.  Curb inlets and storm sewers collect runoff on the streets and then
into Rock Creek.  There is no known history of drainage problems in the immediate area.  The
site is not located in a FEMA designated flood plain or floodway.

STORM RUNOFF REQUIREMENTS

The City of Fairway allows 40% impervious on the first 10,000 s.f. of the site.  For this site, the
allowable impervious is 3,242 s.f..  The proposed total impervious area of 3,241 s.f. is less than the
allowable.   The proposed Q10 and Q100 are lower than allowable area design.  Storm Detention is
NOT REQUIRED.
Since the rear of the lot will continue to flow thru several yards to the south, the design flow
thru the yards from the project site should not increase.  We propose to reduce the drainage area
to the rear by piping front roof drains to the street, and grading the driveway and front yard to
drain onto Canterbury.  The design rear flows of Q10 = 0.65 cfs. and Q100 = 1.20 cfs are lower
than the existing flows of Q10 = 1.05 cfs. and  Q100 =1.92 cfs.   The runoff to the street flows to
the same storm sewers system on State Park Road.  The rates are of no concern to the street
drainage system.

We recommend approval of the project as proposed.

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT:

The storm drainage report, and site grading construction drawings, were prepared under my direct
supervision; and to the best of my knowledge conform to the City of Fairway, Kansas storm
drainage design criteria for private development.

C

REENIGNELANOIS
SE

FO
R

WESSEL

P

TREBOR

SASKAN

LI DEC SEN

7183

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/14/25



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 2HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff = 0.27 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.014 af,  Depth> 2.39"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,832 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 1,145 74 GRASS

2,977 89 Weighted Average
1,145 38.46% Pervious Area
1,832 61.54% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

0

MSE 24-hr 4
2-Year Rainfall=3.66"
Runoff Area=2,977 sf

Runoff Volume=0.014 af
Runoff Depth>2.39"

Tc=5.0 min
CN=89

0.27 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 3HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.17 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.18 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.20 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.21 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.23 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.24 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.26 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.27 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.29 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.31 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.33 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.34 0.01 0.00
8.00 0.36 0.01 0.00
8.25 0.38 0.01 0.00
8.50 0.40 0.02 0.00
8.75 0.42 0.02 0.00
9.00 0.44 0.03 0.00
9.25 0.48 0.04 0.00
9.50 0.51 0.05 0.00
9.75 0.54 0.06 0.00

10.00 0.58 0.07 0.00
10.25 0.62 0.09 0.00
10.50 0.65 0.10 0.00
10.75 0.72 0.13 0.01
11.00 0.79 0.17 0.01
11.25 0.88 0.22 0.01
11.50 0.99 0.28 0.02
11.75 1.20 0.41 0.04
12.00 1.71 0.80 0.14
12.25 2.46 1.42 0.10
12.50 2.67 1.60 0.04
12.75 2.78 1.70 0.03
13.00 2.87 1.78 0.02
13.25 2.94 1.85 0.02
13.50 3.01 1.90 0.01
13.75 3.04 1.94 0.01
14.00 3.08 1.97 0.01
14.25 3.12 2.01 0.01
14.50 3.15 2.04 0.01
14.75 3.18 2.07 0.01
15.00 3.22 2.10 0.01
15.25 3.24 2.12 0.01
15.50 3.26 2.13 0.01
15.75 3.28 2.15 0.00
16.00 3.30 2.17 0.00
16.25 3.32 2.19 0.00
16.50 3.33 2.20 0.00
16.75 3.35 2.22 0.00
17.00 3.37 2.24 0.00
17.25 3.39 2.25 0.00
17.50 3.40 2.27 0.00

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 3.42 2.28 0.00
18.00 3.43 2.30 0.00
18.25 3.45 2.31 0.00
18.50 3.46 2.32 0.00
18.75 3.48 2.34 0.00
19.00 3.49 2.35 0.00
19.25 3.51 2.36 0.00
19.50 3.52 2.37 0.00
19.75 3.53 2.38 0.00
20.00 3.54 2.40 0.00



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 4HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff = 0.57 cfs @ 12.12 hrs,  Volume= 0.028 af,  Depth> 1.81"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 2,600 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 5,505 74 GRASS

8,105 82 Weighted Average
5,505 67.92% Pervious Area
2,600 32.08% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 4
2-Year Rainfall=3.66"
Runoff Area=8,105 sf

Runoff Volume=0.028 af
Runoff Depth>1.81"

Tc=5.0 min
CN=82

0.57 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 5HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.17 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.18 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.20 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.21 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.23 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.24 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.26 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.27 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.29 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.31 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.33 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.34 0.00 0.00
8.00 0.36 0.00 0.00
8.25 0.38 0.00 0.00
8.50 0.40 0.00 0.00
8.75 0.42 0.00 0.00
9.00 0.44 0.00 0.00
9.25 0.48 0.00 0.00
9.50 0.51 0.00 0.00
9.75 0.54 0.00 0.00

10.00 0.58 0.01 0.00
10.25 0.62 0.01 0.00
10.50 0.65 0.02 0.00
10.75 0.72 0.03 0.01
11.00 0.79 0.05 0.01
11.25 0.88 0.08 0.02
11.50 0.99 0.11 0.03
11.75 1.20 0.20 0.07
12.00 1.71 0.47 0.27
12.25 2.46 0.97 0.22
12.50 2.67 1.12 0.10
12.75 2.78 1.20 0.06
13.00 2.87 1.28 0.05
13.25 2.94 1.34 0.04
13.50 3.01 1.38 0.03
13.75 3.04 1.41 0.02
14.00 3.08 1.44 0.02
14.25 3.12 1.47 0.02
14.50 3.15 1.50 0.02
14.75 3.18 1.53 0.02
15.00 3.22 1.55 0.02
15.25 3.24 1.57 0.01
15.50 3.26 1.59 0.01
15.75 3.28 1.60 0.01
16.00 3.30 1.62 0.01
16.25 3.32 1.63 0.01
16.50 3.33 1.65 0.01
16.75 3.35 1.66 0.01
17.00 3.37 1.68 0.01
17.25 3.39 1.69 0.01
17.50 3.40 1.70 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 3.42 1.72 0.01
18.00 3.43 1.73 0.01
18.25 3.45 1.74 0.01
18.50 3.46 1.75 0.01
18.75 3.48 1.76 0.01
19.00 3.49 1.78 0.01
19.25 3.51 1.79 0.01
19.50 3.52 1.80 0.01
19.75 3.53 1.81 0.01
20.00 3.54 1.82 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 6HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff = 0.35 cfs @ 12.12 hrs,  Volume= 0.017 af,  Depth> 1.74"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,409 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 3,719 74 GRASS

5,128 81 Weighted Average
3,719 72.52% Pervious Area
1,409 27.48% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.38

0.36

0.34

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

0

MSE 24-hr 4
2-Year Rainfall=3.66"
Runoff Area=5,128 sf

Runoff Volume=0.017 af
Runoff Depth>1.74"

Tc=5.0 min
CN=81

0.35 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  2-Year Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 7HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.17 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.18 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.20 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.21 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.23 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.24 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.26 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.27 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.29 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.31 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.33 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.34 0.00 0.00
8.00 0.36 0.00 0.00
8.25 0.38 0.00 0.00
8.50 0.40 0.00 0.00
8.75 0.42 0.00 0.00
9.00 0.44 0.00 0.00
9.25 0.48 0.00 0.00
9.50 0.51 0.00 0.00
9.75 0.54 0.00 0.00

10.00 0.58 0.00 0.00
10.25 0.62 0.01 0.00
10.50 0.65 0.01 0.00
10.75 0.72 0.02 0.01
11.00 0.79 0.04 0.01
11.25 0.88 0.06 0.01
11.50 0.99 0.10 0.02
11.75 1.20 0.17 0.04
12.00 1.71 0.43 0.16
12.25 2.46 0.91 0.14
12.50 2.67 1.06 0.06
12.75 2.78 1.14 0.04
13.00 2.87 1.21 0.03
13.25 2.94 1.27 0.03
13.50 3.01 1.32 0.02
13.75 3.04 1.35 0.01
14.00 3.08 1.38 0.01
14.25 3.12 1.40 0.01
14.50 3.15 1.43 0.01
14.75 3.18 1.46 0.01
15.00 3.22 1.48 0.01
15.25 3.24 1.50 0.01
15.50 3.26 1.51 0.01
15.75 3.28 1.53 0.01
16.00 3.30 1.55 0.01
16.25 3.32 1.56 0.01
16.50 3.33 1.58 0.01
16.75 3.35 1.59 0.01
17.00 3.37 1.60 0.01
17.25 3.39 1.62 0.01
17.50 3.40 1.63 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 3.42 1.64 0.01
18.00 3.43 1.66 0.01
18.25 3.45 1.67 0.01
18.50 3.46 1.68 0.01
18.75 3.48 1.69 0.01
19.00 3.49 1.70 0.01
19.25 3.51 1.71 0.00
19.50 3.52 1.72 0.00
19.75 3.53 1.73 0.00
20.00 3.54 1.74 0.00



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 8HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff = 0.45 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.023 af,  Depth> 4.12"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,832 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 1,145 74 GRASS

2,977 89 Weighted Average
1,145 38.46% Pervious Area
1,832 61.54% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.48
0.46
0.44
0.42
0.4

0.38
0.36
0.34
0.32
0.3

0.28
0.26
0.24
0.22
0.2

0.18
0.16
0.14
0.12
0.1

0.08
0.06
0.04
0.02

0

MSE 24-hr 4
10-Year Rainfall=5.55"

Runoff Area=2,977 sf
Runoff Volume=0.023 af

Runoff Depth>4.12"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=89

0.45 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 9HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.25 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.28 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.30 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.32 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.34 0.01 0.00
6.25 0.36 0.01 0.00
6.50 0.39 0.01 0.00
6.75 0.41 0.02 0.00
7.00 0.44 0.03 0.00
7.25 0.47 0.03 0.00
7.50 0.49 0.04 0.00
7.75 0.52 0.05 0.00
8.00 0.55 0.06 0.00
8.25 0.58 0.07 0.00
8.50 0.61 0.08 0.00
8.75 0.64 0.09 0.00
9.00 0.67 0.11 0.00
9.25 0.72 0.13 0.01
9.50 0.77 0.16 0.01
9.75 0.82 0.18 0.01

10.00 0.88 0.21 0.01
10.25 0.94 0.25 0.01
10.50 0.99 0.28 0.01
10.75 1.08 0.34 0.02
11.00 1.20 0.42 0.02
11.25 1.34 0.51 0.03
11.50 1.51 0.64 0.03
11.75 1.82 0.88 0.08
12.00 2.60 1.54 0.24
12.25 3.73 2.57 0.16
12.50 4.04 2.86 0.07
12.75 4.21 3.02 0.04
13.00 4.35 3.15 0.04
13.25 4.47 3.26 0.03
13.50 4.56 3.35 0.02
13.75 4.61 3.40 0.02
14.00 4.67 3.46 0.01
14.25 4.73 3.51 0.01
14.50 4.78 3.56 0.01
14.75 4.83 3.61 0.01
15.00 4.88 3.66 0.01
15.25 4.91 3.69 0.01
15.50 4.94 3.72 0.01
15.75 4.97 3.74 0.01
16.00 5.00 3.77 0.01
16.25 5.03 3.80 0.01
16.50 5.06 3.83 0.01
16.75 5.08 3.85 0.01
17.00 5.11 3.88 0.01
17.25 5.14 3.90 0.01
17.50 5.16 3.93 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 5.19 3.95 0.01
18.00 5.21 3.97 0.01
18.25 5.23 3.99 0.01
18.50 5.25 4.02 0.01
18.75 5.27 4.04 0.01
19.00 5.30 4.06 0.01
19.25 5.32 4.07 0.01
19.50 5.33 4.09 0.01
19.75 5.35 4.11 0.00
20.00 5.37 4.13 0.00



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 10HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff = 1.05 cfs @ 12.12 hrs,  Volume= 0.053 af,  Depth> 3.41"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 2,600 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 5,505 74 GRASS

8,105 82 Weighted Average
5,505 67.92% Pervious Area
2,600 32.08% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

1

0

MSE 24-hr 4
10-Year Rainfall=5.55"

Runoff Area=8,105 sf
Runoff Volume=0.053 af

Runoff Depth>3.41"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=82

1.05 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 11HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.25 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.28 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.30 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.32 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.34 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.36 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.39 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.41 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.44 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.47 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.49 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.52 0.00 0.00
8.00 0.55 0.01 0.00
8.25 0.58 0.01 0.00
8.50 0.61 0.01 0.00
8.75 0.64 0.02 0.00
9.00 0.67 0.02 0.00
9.25 0.72 0.03 0.01
9.50 0.77 0.04 0.01
9.75 0.82 0.06 0.01

10.00 0.88 0.07 0.01
10.25 0.94 0.09 0.01
10.50 0.99 0.11 0.02
10.75 1.08 0.15 0.03
11.00 1.20 0.20 0.04
11.25 1.34 0.26 0.05
11.50 1.51 0.35 0.07
11.75 1.82 0.53 0.15
12.00 2.60 1.07 0.53
12.25 3.73 1.98 0.40
12.50 4.04 2.24 0.17
12.75 4.21 2.38 0.10
13.00 4.35 2.50 0.09
13.25 4.47 2.61 0.07
13.50 4.56 2.69 0.06
13.75 4.61 2.74 0.04
14.00 4.67 2.79 0.04
14.25 4.73 2.83 0.04
14.50 4.78 2.88 0.03
14.75 4.83 2.93 0.03
15.00 4.88 2.97 0.03
15.25 4.91 3.00 0.02
15.50 4.94 3.03 0.02
15.75 4.97 3.05 0.02
16.00 5.00 3.08 0.02
16.25 5.03 3.10 0.02
16.50 5.06 3.13 0.02
16.75 5.08 3.15 0.02
17.00 5.11 3.18 0.02
17.25 5.14 3.20 0.02
17.50 5.16 3.22 0.02

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 5.19 3.25 0.02
18.00 5.21 3.27 0.02
18.25 5.23 3.29 0.02
18.50 5.25 3.31 0.01
18.75 5.27 3.33 0.01
19.00 5.30 3.34 0.01
19.25 5.32 3.36 0.01
19.50 5.33 3.38 0.01
19.75 5.35 3.40 0.01
20.00 5.37 3.41 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 12HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff = 0.65 cfs @ 12.12 hrs,  Volume= 0.032 af,  Depth> 3.31"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,409 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 3,719 74 GRASS

5,128 81 Weighted Average
3,719 72.52% Pervious Area
1,409 27.48% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 4
10-Year Rainfall=5.55"

Runoff Area=5,128 sf
Runoff Volume=0.032 af

Runoff Depth>3.31"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=81

0.65 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  10-Year Rainfall=5.55"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 13HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.25 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.28 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.30 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.32 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.34 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.36 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.39 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.41 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.44 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.47 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.49 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.52 0.00 0.00
8.00 0.55 0.00 0.00
8.25 0.58 0.00 0.00
8.50 0.61 0.01 0.00
8.75 0.64 0.01 0.00
9.00 0.67 0.02 0.00
9.25 0.72 0.02 0.00
9.50 0.77 0.03 0.01
9.75 0.82 0.05 0.01

10.00 0.88 0.06 0.01
10.25 0.94 0.08 0.01
10.50 0.99 0.10 0.01
10.75 1.08 0.13 0.02
11.00 1.20 0.17 0.02
11.25 1.34 0.24 0.03
11.50 1.51 0.32 0.04
11.75 1.82 0.49 0.09
12.00 2.60 1.01 0.33
12.25 3.73 1.90 0.25
12.50 4.04 2.16 0.10
12.75 4.21 2.30 0.06
13.00 4.35 2.42 0.06
13.25 4.47 2.52 0.05
13.50 4.56 2.60 0.04
13.75 4.61 2.65 0.02
14.00 4.67 2.70 0.02
14.25 4.73 2.74 0.02
14.50 4.78 2.79 0.02
14.75 4.83 2.83 0.02
15.00 4.88 2.88 0.02
15.25 4.91 2.91 0.01
15.50 4.94 2.93 0.01
15.75 4.97 2.96 0.01
16.00 5.00 2.99 0.01
16.25 5.03 3.01 0.01
16.50 5.06 3.04 0.01
16.75 5.08 3.06 0.01
17.00 5.11 3.08 0.01
17.25 5.14 3.11 0.01
17.50 5.16 3.13 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 5.19 3.15 0.01
18.00 5.21 3.17 0.01
18.25 5.23 3.19 0.01
18.50 5.25 3.21 0.01
18.75 5.27 3.23 0.01
19.00 5.30 3.25 0.01
19.25 5.32 3.27 0.01
19.50 5.33 3.28 0.01
19.75 5.35 3.30 0.01
20.00 5.37 3.31 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 14HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff = 0.55 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.029 af,  Depth> 5.14"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,832 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 1,145 74 GRASS

2,977 89 Weighted Average
1,145 38.46% Pervious Area
1,832 61.54% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 4
25-Year Rainfall=6.64"

Runoff Area=2,977 sf
Runoff Volume=0.029 af

Runoff Depth>5.14"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=89

0.55 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 15HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.30 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.33 0.01 0.00
5.50 0.35 0.01 0.00
5.75 0.38 0.01 0.00
6.00 0.41 0.02 0.00
6.25 0.44 0.03 0.00
6.50 0.47 0.03 0.00
6.75 0.50 0.04 0.00
7.00 0.53 0.05 0.00
7.25 0.56 0.06 0.00
7.50 0.59 0.07 0.00
7.75 0.62 0.09 0.00
8.00 0.66 0.10 0.00
8.25 0.69 0.12 0.00
8.50 0.73 0.14 0.00
8.75 0.77 0.15 0.01
9.00 0.80 0.17 0.01
9.25 0.86 0.20 0.01
9.50 0.92 0.24 0.01
9.75 0.99 0.28 0.01

10.00 1.05 0.32 0.01
10.25 1.12 0.36 0.01
10.50 1.19 0.41 0.01
10.75 1.30 0.48 0.02
11.00 1.44 0.58 0.03
11.25 1.61 0.71 0.04
11.50 1.80 0.87 0.04
11.75 2.18 1.18 0.09
12.00 3.11 2.00 0.29
12.25 4.46 3.26 0.20
12.50 4.84 3.62 0.08
12.75 5.03 3.81 0.05
13.00 5.20 3.97 0.04
13.25 5.34 4.10 0.04
13.50 5.45 4.21 0.03
13.75 5.52 4.27 0.02
14.00 5.59 4.34 0.02
14.25 5.65 4.40 0.02
14.50 5.72 4.46 0.02
14.75 5.78 4.52 0.02
15.00 5.84 4.58 0.02
15.25 5.87 4.61 0.01
15.50 5.91 4.65 0.01
15.75 5.95 4.68 0.01
16.00 5.98 4.72 0.01
16.25 6.02 4.75 0.01
16.50 6.05 4.78 0.01
16.75 6.08 4.82 0.01
17.00 6.11 4.85 0.01
17.25 6.14 4.88 0.01
17.50 6.17 4.90 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 6.20 4.93 0.01
18.00 6.23 4.96 0.01
18.25 6.26 4.99 0.01
18.50 6.29 5.01 0.01
18.75 6.31 5.04 0.01
19.00 6.34 5.06 0.01
19.25 6.36 5.08 0.01
19.50 6.38 5.11 0.01
19.75 6.40 5.13 0.01
20.00 6.42 5.15 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 16HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff = 1.33 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.068 af,  Depth> 4.38"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 2,600 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 5,505 74 GRASS

8,105 82 Weighted Average
5,505 67.92% Pervious Area
2,600 32.08% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

1

0

MSE 24-hr 4
25-Year Rainfall=6.64"

Runoff Area=8,105 sf
Runoff Volume=0.068 af

Runoff Depth>4.38"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=82

1.33 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 17HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.30 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.33 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.35 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.38 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.41 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.44 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.47 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.50 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.53 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.56 0.01 0.00
7.50 0.59 0.01 0.00
7.75 0.62 0.01 0.00
8.00 0.66 0.02 0.00
8.25 0.69 0.03 0.01
8.50 0.73 0.03 0.01
8.75 0.77 0.04 0.01
9.00 0.80 0.05 0.01
9.25 0.86 0.07 0.01
9.50 0.92 0.09 0.01
9.75 0.99 0.11 0.02

10.00 1.05 0.13 0.02
10.25 1.12 0.16 0.02
10.50 1.19 0.19 0.02
10.75 1.30 0.24 0.04
11.00 1.44 0.31 0.06
11.25 1.61 0.40 0.07
11.50 1.80 0.52 0.09
11.75 2.18 0.77 0.21
12.00 3.11 1.47 0.69
12.25 4.46 2.60 0.50
12.50 4.84 2.93 0.21
12.75 5.03 3.11 0.13
13.00 5.20 3.26 0.11
13.25 5.34 3.39 0.09
13.50 5.45 3.49 0.07
13.75 5.52 3.55 0.05
14.00 5.59 3.61 0.05
14.25 5.65 3.67 0.04
14.50 5.72 3.73 0.04
14.75 5.78 3.78 0.04
15.00 5.84 3.84 0.04
15.25 5.87 3.87 0.03
15.50 5.91 3.91 0.03
15.75 5.95 3.94 0.02
16.00 5.98 3.97 0.02
16.25 6.02 4.00 0.02
16.50 6.05 4.03 0.02
16.75 6.08 4.06 0.02
17.00 6.11 4.09 0.02
17.25 6.14 4.12 0.02
17.50 6.17 4.15 0.02

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 6.20 4.17 0.02
18.00 6.23 4.20 0.02
18.25 6.26 4.23 0.02
18.50 6.29 4.25 0.02
18.75 6.31 4.27 0.02
19.00 6.34 4.30 0.02
19.25 6.36 4.32 0.02
19.50 6.38 4.34 0.02
19.75 6.40 4.36 0.02
20.00 6.42 4.38 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 18HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff = 0.83 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.042 af,  Depth> 4.27"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,409 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 3,719 74 GRASS

5,128 81 Weighted Average
3,719 72.52% Pervious Area
1,409 27.48% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.9

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 4
25-Year Rainfall=6.64"

Runoff Area=5,128 sf
Runoff Volume=0.042 af

Runoff Depth>4.27"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=81

0.83 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  25-Year Rainfall=6.64"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 19HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.30 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.33 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.35 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.38 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.41 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.44 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.47 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.50 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.53 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.56 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.59 0.01 0.00
7.75 0.62 0.01 0.00
8.00 0.66 0.01 0.00
8.25 0.69 0.02 0.00
8.50 0.73 0.03 0.00
8.75 0.77 0.03 0.00
9.00 0.80 0.04 0.00
9.25 0.86 0.06 0.01
9.50 0.92 0.07 0.01
9.75 0.99 0.09 0.01

10.00 1.05 0.12 0.01
10.25 1.12 0.14 0.01
10.50 1.19 0.17 0.01
10.75 1.30 0.22 0.02
11.00 1.44 0.28 0.03
11.25 1.61 0.37 0.04
11.50 1.80 0.48 0.06
11.75 2.18 0.72 0.13
12.00 3.11 1.40 0.42
12.25 4.46 2.52 0.31
12.50 4.84 2.84 0.13
12.75 5.03 3.02 0.08
13.00 5.20 3.17 0.07
13.25 5.34 3.29 0.06
13.50 5.45 3.39 0.04
13.75 5.52 3.45 0.03
14.00 5.59 3.51 0.03
14.25 5.65 3.57 0.03
14.50 5.72 3.63 0.03
14.75 5.78 3.68 0.03
15.00 5.84 3.73 0.03
15.25 5.87 3.77 0.02
15.50 5.91 3.80 0.02
15.75 5.95 3.84 0.02
16.00 5.98 3.87 0.02
16.25 6.02 3.90 0.01
16.50 6.05 3.93 0.01
16.75 6.08 3.96 0.01
17.00 6.11 3.99 0.01
17.25 6.14 4.02 0.01
17.50 6.17 4.04 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 6.20 4.07 0.01
18.00 6.23 4.10 0.01
18.25 6.26 4.12 0.01
18.50 6.29 4.14 0.01
18.75 6.31 4.17 0.01
19.00 6.34 4.19 0.01
19.25 6.36 4.21 0.01
19.50 6.38 4.23 0.01
19.75 6.40 4.25 0.01
20.00 6.42 4.27 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 20HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff = 0.76 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.042 af,  Depth> 7.30"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,832 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 1,145 74 GRASS

2,977 89 Weighted Average
1,145 38.46% Pervious Area
1,832 61.54% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.85

0.8

0.75

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

MSE 24-hr 4
100-Year Rainfall=8.94"

Runoff Area=2,977 sf
Runoff Volume=0.042 af

Runoff Depth>7.30"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=89

0.76 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 21HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.41 0.02 0.00
5.25 0.44 0.03 0.00
5.50 0.48 0.04 0.00
5.75 0.51 0.05 0.00
6.00 0.55 0.06 0.00
6.25 0.59 0.07 0.00
6.50 0.63 0.09 0.00
6.75 0.67 0.11 0.00
7.00 0.71 0.13 0.01
7.25 0.75 0.15 0.01
7.50 0.79 0.17 0.01
7.75 0.84 0.19 0.01
8.00 0.89 0.22 0.01
8.25 0.93 0.24 0.01
8.50 0.98 0.27 0.01
8.75 1.03 0.30 0.01
9.00 1.08 0.34 0.01
9.25 1.16 0.39 0.01
9.50 1.24 0.44 0.02
9.75 1.33 0.50 0.02

10.00 1.42 0.57 0.02
10.25 1.51 0.64 0.02
10.50 1.60 0.71 0.02
10.75 1.75 0.82 0.03
11.00 1.93 0.97 0.04
11.25 2.16 1.16 0.05
11.50 2.43 1.39 0.07
11.75 2.93 1.84 0.14
12.00 4.19 3.00 0.42
12.25 6.01 4.75 0.27
12.50 6.51 5.23 0.11
12.75 6.78 5.49 0.07
13.00 7.01 5.71 0.06
13.25 7.19 5.90 0.05
13.50 7.34 6.04 0.04
13.75 7.43 6.13 0.02
14.00 7.52 6.22 0.02
14.25 7.61 6.31 0.02
14.50 7.70 6.39 0.02
14.75 7.78 6.47 0.02
15.00 7.86 6.55 0.02
15.25 7.91 6.60 0.01
15.50 7.96 6.65 0.01
15.75 8.01 6.69 0.01
16.00 8.05 6.74 0.01
16.25 8.10 6.79 0.01
16.50 8.15 6.83 0.01
16.75 8.19 6.87 0.01
17.00 8.23 6.91 0.01
17.25 8.27 6.96 0.01
17.50 8.31 6.99 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 8.35 7.03 0.01
18.00 8.39 7.07 0.01
18.25 8.43 7.11 0.01
18.50 8.46 7.14 0.01
18.75 8.50 7.17 0.01
19.00 8.53 7.21 0.01
19.25 8.56 7.24 0.01
19.50 8.59 7.27 0.01
19.75 8.62 7.30 0.01
20.00 8.65 7.33 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 22HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff = 1.92 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.100 af,  Depth> 6.47"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 2,600 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 5,505 74 GRASS

8,105 82 Weighted Average
5,505 67.92% Pervious Area
2,600 32.08% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

2

1

0

MSE 24-hr 4
100-Year Rainfall=8.94"

Runoff Area=8,105 sf
Runoff Volume=0.100 af

Runoff Depth>6.47"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=82

1.92 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 23HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.41 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.44 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.48 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.51 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.55 0.01 0.00
6.25 0.59 0.01 0.00
6.50 0.63 0.01 0.00
6.75 0.67 0.02 0.01
7.00 0.71 0.03 0.01
7.25 0.75 0.04 0.01
7.50 0.79 0.05 0.01
7.75 0.84 0.06 0.01
8.00 0.89 0.08 0.01
8.25 0.93 0.09 0.01
8.50 0.98 0.11 0.01
8.75 1.03 0.13 0.01
9.00 1.08 0.15 0.02
9.25 1.16 0.18 0.03
9.50 1.24 0.22 0.03
9.75 1.33 0.26 0.03

10.00 1.42 0.30 0.03
10.25 1.51 0.35 0.04
10.50 1.60 0.40 0.04
10.75 1.75 0.49 0.07
11.00 1.93 0.61 0.09
11.25 2.16 0.76 0.12
11.50 2.43 0.94 0.15
11.75 2.93 1.32 0.32
12.00 4.19 2.37 1.02
12.25 6.01 4.00 0.70
12.50 6.51 4.46 0.29
12.75 6.78 4.71 0.18
13.00 7.01 4.92 0.15
13.25 7.19 5.10 0.13
13.50 7.34 5.24 0.10
13.75 7.43 5.32 0.07
14.00 7.52 5.41 0.06
14.25 7.61 5.49 0.06
14.50 7.70 5.57 0.06
14.75 7.78 5.65 0.06
15.00 7.86 5.73 0.06
15.25 7.91 5.77 0.04
15.50 7.96 5.82 0.04
15.75 8.01 5.87 0.03
16.00 8.05 5.91 0.03
16.25 8.10 5.96 0.03
16.50 8.15 6.00 0.03
16.75 8.19 6.04 0.03
17.00 8.23 6.08 0.03
17.25 8.27 6.12 0.03
17.50 8.31 6.16 0.03

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 8.35 6.20 0.03
18.00 8.39 6.23 0.03
18.25 8.43 6.27 0.03
18.50 8.46 6.30 0.03
18.75 8.50 6.33 0.02
19.00 8.53 6.36 0.02
19.25 8.56 6.39 0.02
19.50 8.59 6.42 0.02
19.75 8.62 6.45 0.02
20.00 8.65 6.48 0.02



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 24HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff = 1.20 cfs @ 12.11 hrs,  Volume= 0.062 af,  Depth> 6.35"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,409 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 3,719 74 GRASS

5,128 81 Weighted Average
3,719 72.52% Pervious Area
1,409 27.48% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

1

0

MSE 24-hr 4
100-Year Rainfall=8.94"

Runoff Area=5,128 sf
Runoff Volume=0.062 af

Runoff Depth>6.35"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=81

1.20 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
MSE 24-hr 4  100-Year Rainfall=8.94"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 25HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.41 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.44 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.48 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.51 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.55 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.59 0.01 0.00
6.50 0.63 0.01 0.00
6.75 0.67 0.02 0.00
7.00 0.71 0.02 0.00
7.25 0.75 0.03 0.00
7.50 0.79 0.04 0.00
7.75 0.84 0.05 0.01
8.00 0.89 0.06 0.01
8.25 0.93 0.08 0.01
8.50 0.98 0.09 0.01
8.75 1.03 0.11 0.01
9.00 1.08 0.13 0.01
9.25 1.16 0.16 0.01
9.50 1.24 0.19 0.02
9.75 1.33 0.23 0.02

10.00 1.42 0.27 0.02
10.25 1.51 0.32 0.02
10.50 1.60 0.37 0.02
10.75 1.75 0.45 0.04
11.00 1.93 0.56 0.06
11.25 2.16 0.71 0.07
11.50 2.43 0.89 0.09
11.75 2.93 1.26 0.20
12.00 4.19 2.28 0.63
12.25 6.01 3.89 0.44
12.50 6.51 4.35 0.18
12.75 6.78 4.60 0.11
13.00 7.01 4.81 0.10
13.25 7.19 4.98 0.08
13.50 7.34 5.12 0.06
13.75 7.43 5.21 0.04
14.00 7.52 5.29 0.04
14.25 7.61 5.38 0.04
14.50 7.70 5.46 0.04
14.75 7.78 5.53 0.04
15.00 7.86 5.61 0.04
15.25 7.91 5.66 0.02
15.50 7.96 5.70 0.02
15.75 8.01 5.75 0.02
16.00 8.05 5.79 0.02
16.25 8.10 5.84 0.02
16.50 8.15 5.88 0.02
16.75 8.19 5.92 0.02
17.00 8.23 5.96 0.02
17.25 8.27 6.00 0.02
17.50 8.31 6.04 0.02

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 8.35 6.08 0.02
18.00 8.39 6.11 0.02
18.25 8.43 6.15 0.02
18.50 8.46 6.18 0.02
18.75 8.50 6.21 0.02
19.00 8.53 6.24 0.01
19.25 8.56 6.27 0.01
19.50 8.59 6.30 0.01
19.75 8.62 6.33 0.01
20.00 8.65 6.36 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 26HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff = 0.30 cfs @ 11.95 hrs,  Volume= 0.013 af,  Depth> 2.34"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,832 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 1,145 74 GRASS

2,977 89 Weighted Average
1,145 38.46% Pervious Area
1,832 61.54% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.32

0.3

0.28

0.26

0.24

0.22

0.2

0.18

0.16

0.14

0.12

0.1

0.08

0.06

0.04

0.02

0

Type II 24-hr
Custom Rainfall=3.66"

Runoff Area=2,977 sf
Runoff Volume=0.013 af

Runoff Depth>2.34"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=89

0.30 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 27HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 7S: PROP STREET

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.23 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.25 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.26 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.28 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.29 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.31 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.33 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.34 0.01 0.00
7.00 0.36 0.01 0.00
7.25 0.38 0.01 0.00
7.50 0.40 0.02 0.00
7.75 0.42 0.02 0.00
8.00 0.44 0.03 0.00
8.25 0.46 0.03 0.00
8.50 0.48 0.04 0.00
8.75 0.51 0.05 0.00
9.00 0.54 0.06 0.00
9.25 0.57 0.07 0.00
9.50 0.60 0.08 0.00
9.75 0.63 0.09 0.00

10.00 0.66 0.10 0.00
10.25 0.70 0.12 0.01
10.50 0.75 0.14 0.01
10.75 0.80 0.17 0.01
11.00 0.86 0.20 0.01
11.25 0.94 0.25 0.01
11.50 1.04 0.31 0.02
11.75 1.42 0.57 0.09
12.00 2.43 1.39 0.25
12.25 2.58 1.53 0.04
12.50 2.69 1.62 0.02
12.75 2.76 1.69 0.02
13.00 2.83 1.74 0.01
13.25 2.88 1.79 0.01
13.50 2.92 1.83 0.01
13.75 2.97 1.87 0.01
14.00 3.00 1.90 0.01
14.25 3.03 1.93 0.01
14.50 3.07 1.96 0.01
14.75 3.10 1.99 0.01
15.00 3.12 2.01 0.01
15.25 3.15 2.04 0.01
15.50 3.18 2.06 0.01
15.75 3.20 2.08 0.01
16.00 3.22 2.10 0.01
16.25 3.24 2.12 0.01
16.50 3.26 2.14 0.01
16.75 3.28 2.16 0.00
17.00 3.30 2.17 0.00
17.25 3.32 2.19 0.00
17.50 3.34 2.21 0.00

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 3.35 2.22 0.00
18.00 3.37 2.24 0.00
18.25 3.39 2.25 0.00
18.50 3.40 2.27 0.00
18.75 3.42 2.28 0.00
19.00 3.43 2.29 0.00
19.25 3.45 2.31 0.00
19.50 3.46 2.32 0.00
19.75 3.47 2.33 0.00
20.00 3.48 2.34 0.00



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 28HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff = 0.64 cfs @ 11.96 hrs,  Volume= 0.027 af,  Depth> 1.77"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 2,600 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 5,505 74 GRASS

8,105 82 Weighted Average
5,505 67.92% Pervious Area
2,600 32.08% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.7

0.65

0.6

0.55

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

0

Type II 24-hr
Custom Rainfall=3.66"

Runoff Area=8,105 sf
Runoff Volume=0.027 af

Runoff Depth>1.77"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=82

0.64 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 29HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 8S: EXISTING REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.23 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.25 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.26 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.28 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.29 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.31 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.33 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.34 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.36 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.38 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.40 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.42 0.00 0.00
8.00 0.44 0.00 0.00
8.25 0.46 0.00 0.00
8.50 0.48 0.00 0.00
8.75 0.51 0.00 0.00
9.00 0.54 0.00 0.00
9.25 0.57 0.01 0.00
9.50 0.60 0.01 0.00
9.75 0.63 0.01 0.00

10.00 0.66 0.02 0.00
10.25 0.70 0.03 0.01
10.50 0.75 0.04 0.01
10.75 0.80 0.05 0.01
11.00 0.86 0.07 0.01
11.25 0.94 0.09 0.02
11.50 1.04 0.13 0.03
11.75 1.42 0.30 0.17
12.00 2.43 0.94 0.56
12.25 2.58 1.06 0.08
12.50 2.69 1.14 0.05
12.75 2.76 1.20 0.04
13.00 2.83 1.24 0.03
13.25 2.88 1.28 0.03
13.50 2.92 1.32 0.03
13.75 2.97 1.35 0.02
14.00 3.00 1.38 0.02
14.25 3.03 1.41 0.02
14.50 3.07 1.43 0.02
14.75 3.10 1.45 0.02
15.00 3.12 1.48 0.02
15.25 3.15 1.50 0.02
15.50 3.18 1.52 0.01
15.75 3.20 1.54 0.01
16.00 3.22 1.55 0.01
16.25 3.24 1.57 0.01
16.50 3.26 1.59 0.01
16.75 3.28 1.60 0.01
17.00 3.30 1.62 0.01
17.25 3.32 1.63 0.01
17.50 3.34 1.65 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 3.35 1.66 0.01
18.00 3.37 1.68 0.01
18.25 3.39 1.69 0.01
18.50 3.40 1.70 0.01
18.75 3.42 1.71 0.01
19.00 3.43 1.73 0.01
19.25 3.45 1.74 0.01
19.50 3.46 1.75 0.01
19.75 3.47 1.76 0.01
20.00 3.48 1.77 0.01



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 30HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff = 0.39 cfs @ 11.96 hrs,  Volume= 0.017 af,  Depth> 1.69"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"

Area (sf) CN Description
* 1,409 98 IMPERVIOUS
* 3,719 74 GRASS

5,128 81 Weighted Average
3,719 72.52% Pervious Area
1,409 27.48% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)

5.0 Direct Entry, 

Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
201918171615141312111098765

F
lo

w
  

(c
fs

)

0.42

0.4

0.38
0.36

0.34

0.32
0.3

0.28

0.26
0.24

0.22

0.2
0.18

0.16
0.14

0.12

0.1
0.08

0.06

0.04
0.02

0

Type II 24-hr
Custom Rainfall=3.66"

Runoff Area=5,128 sf
Runoff Volume=0.017 af

Runoff Depth>1.69"
Tc=5.0 min

CN=81

0.39 cfs



5500 CANTERBURY FAIRWAY 081425
Type II 24-hr  Custom Rainfall=3.66"5500 CANTERBURY BB 081425

  Printed  8/14/2025Prepared by Robert C Wessel Consulting Eng
Page 31HydroCAD® 10.20-2h  s/n 09646  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Hydrograph for Subcatchment 9S: PROPOSED REAR

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

5.00 0.23 0.00 0.00
5.25 0.25 0.00 0.00
5.50 0.26 0.00 0.00
5.75 0.28 0.00 0.00
6.00 0.29 0.00 0.00
6.25 0.31 0.00 0.00
6.50 0.33 0.00 0.00
6.75 0.34 0.00 0.00
7.00 0.36 0.00 0.00
7.25 0.38 0.00 0.00
7.50 0.40 0.00 0.00
7.75 0.42 0.00 0.00
8.00 0.44 0.00 0.00
8.25 0.46 0.00 0.00
8.50 0.48 0.00 0.00
8.75 0.51 0.00 0.00
9.00 0.54 0.00 0.00
9.25 0.57 0.00 0.00
9.50 0.60 0.01 0.00
9.75 0.63 0.01 0.00

10.00 0.66 0.01 0.00
10.25 0.70 0.02 0.00
10.50 0.75 0.03 0.00
10.75 0.80 0.04 0.01
11.00 0.86 0.06 0.01
11.25 0.94 0.08 0.01
11.50 1.04 0.11 0.02
11.75 1.42 0.27 0.10
12.00 2.43 0.89 0.34
12.25 2.58 1.00 0.05
12.50 2.69 1.08 0.03
12.75 2.76 1.13 0.03
13.00 2.83 1.18 0.02
13.25 2.88 1.22 0.02
13.50 2.92 1.26 0.02
13.75 2.97 1.29 0.01
14.00 3.00 1.31 0.01
14.25 3.03 1.34 0.01
14.50 3.07 1.36 0.01
14.75 3.10 1.39 0.01
15.00 3.12 1.41 0.01
15.25 3.15 1.43 0.01
15.50 3.18 1.45 0.01
15.75 3.20 1.47 0.01
16.00 3.22 1.49 0.01
16.25 3.24 1.50 0.01
16.50 3.26 1.52 0.01
16.75 3.28 1.53 0.01
17.00 3.30 1.55 0.01
17.25 3.32 1.56 0.01
17.50 3.34 1.58 0.01

Time
(hours)

Precip.
(inches)

Excess
(inches)

Runoff
(cfs)

17.75 3.35 1.59 0.01
18.00 3.37 1.60 0.01
18.25 3.39 1.62 0.01
18.50 3.40 1.63 0.01
18.75 3.42 1.64 0.01
19.00 3.43 1.65 0.01
19.25 3.45 1.66 0.01
19.50 3.46 1.68 0.01
19.75 3.47 1.69 0.00
20.00 3.48 1.70 0.00



 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission 

October 27, 2025 

 

TO:   Chair Wendy Bailey 

     Planning Commission Members 

   Anna Krstulic, Zoning Counsel 

 

FROM:    Basil Alani, Community Development Director 

   Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk  

 

APPLICANT:   Property owners, Spencer & Logan Dean  

PROPERTY: 5300 Pawnee Ln - FIELDSTON LOT 1 BLK 2 FAC-0625 

 

ZONING: R-1 Single Family Residential District 

 

PROJECT: Exception for fence on a corner lot to project in front of the building line of an 

adjacent dwelling unit and encroach to the street side property line. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

5300 Pawnee Ln is a standard corner lot with an existing 4 foot wood fence, the applicant is requesting 

an exception for a new 6-foot wood privacy fence in the same location of the existing fence to project in 

front of the building line of the adjacent dwelling unit. Per the provided site plan the proposed fence 

location is in the same location of the existing fence and located at the property line. The applicant 

submitted engineering analysis and a letter of support from the back neighbor.  

The applicant’s documents state they are requesting a variance. However, per the Fairway Municipal Code 

this request for fencing is an exception. 

 

APPLICABLE CODE PROVISIONS : 

Sec. 15-235. Site plan review. 

(a) Applicants. The following development activities shall require a site plan review subject to the procedures 
and criteria contained in the zoning regulations. No building permit shall be issued until the required review 
and approval of a site plan has occurred.  

Development Activity  Preliminary  Final  

In the R-1 district, any construction activity that:  
• Adds to or replaces a portion of the principal building on more than fifty 
percent (50%) of the existing principal building footprint;  
• Adds an entirely new principal building to a lot;  
• Adds a solar energy system; or  
• Any application, regardless of the size or impact of the project, that requests 
an exception to the Dimension Standards in Section 15-296 or the Site Design 
Standards in Section 15-297.  

No  Yes  

 



 

Code Section 15-296. – Dimension standards. 

… 

(c) Fences and walls. A building permit shall be required for construction, alteration, replacement, repair or 

relocation of a fence or wall on any residential lot. The proposed fence or wall shall meet all standards of the 

City's building code and demonstrate that the following additional standards are met:  

(1) Generally. 

 a. Location.  

1. Fences/walls shall be located at or behind the front building lines of the principal building and any 

adjacent dwelling units.  

2. In the case of a rear yard that abuts a street, fences/walls shall be located at least twelve feet (12') from 

the rear property line.  

3. In the case of a corner lot, fences/walls shall be located at or behind the street-side building line(s)of any 

adjacent dwelling unit(s), and at least twelve feet (12') from the street-side property line. [See Section 

15-438, Figure 15-438-6]  

 

 
The applicant is seeking an exception for the fence to be located in front the street side building line 

and adjacent property building line. The new fence will be in the same location of the existing fence on 

the street side property line. 

  

REVIEW CRITERIA: 

 

Code Section 15-296 – Exceptions 
Through the site plan process, the Planning Commission may grant exceptions to the site design standards in this 

Section 15-297, based upon the following criteria:  

(1) The exception will equally or better serve the intent statements for the particular standards being altered; (2) 

The exception meets any specific exception criteria identified in the standards, but shall not be granted to 

allow something that is specifically prohibited in the zoning regulations;  

(3) Any lot design exception is consistent with sound planning, urban design and engineering practices when 

considering the site and its context within the neighborhood;  

(4) Any building design exception is consistent with the common characteristics of the architectural style applied 

to the overall design of the building; and  

(5) The requested exception coordinates quality design of the building and site—primarily considering the 

integrity of the architectural style, the energy performance of the site and building orientation, and the 

relationship of the internal function of the building to the site, streetscape and adjacent property.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 



 

Staff is not opposed to the requested exception and there are no sight-line concerns.  If Planning 

Commission grants the requested exception, staff recommends the following conditions: 

 

1. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

2. Application and approval are void if a building permit is not obtained within one year from the 

date of Planning Commission approval. 





















 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission 

October 27, 2025 

 

TO:   Chair Wendy Bailey 

     Planning Commission Members 

   Anna Krstulic, Zoning Counsel 

 

FROM:    Basil Alani, Community Development Director 

Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk 

 

APPLICANT:    Adam Anthony Pfeifer of APD Studios on behalf of Owner Matt Adam Development     
                                         CO. INC.    
           
PROPERTY: 6018 Buena Vista St, MISSION HIGHLANDS LOT 185 FAC-5976 

ZONING: R-1 Single Family Residential District 

PROJECT: Site Plan Review – New principal building with exceptions to window hierarchy on 

front, right & left elevations.  

 

BACKGROUND: 

Applicant submitted a request for new single-family residence. The plans show the height of the structure 

is 29 feet 10 1/8 inches from the existing grade of 962.1 feet. The watershed analysis shows the proposed 

hardscape to keep the same drainage to the street (Q100 is 0 CFS) and the rear (Q100 is 1.87 CFS). The 

applicant requests approval of the project. 

The applicant is seeking an exception for the front, right & left elevation façades to have the upper 

windows not aligning with the lower windows. 

APPLICABLE CODE PROVISIONS: 

Code Section 15-235. – Site plan review. 

(a) Applicants. The following development activities shall require a site plan review subject to the procedures and 

criteria contained in the zoning regulations. No building permit shall be issued until the required review and 

approval of a site plan has occurred. 

Development Activity Preliminary Final 

In the R-1 district, any construction activity that either: 

. . . 

• Adds an entirely new principal building to a lot; or 

. . . 

No Yes 

 

(3) Final site plan. Nine (9) copies of the final site plan shall be submitted in support of the application for final site 

approval. The final site plan shall contain the following information and meet the following requirements: 

15. Preliminary drainage design and location and existing drainage facilities. 



 

16. For all R-1 activity defined as a new house or that adds to or replaces a portion of the principal building on 

more than fifty percent (50%) of the existing principal building footprint, and for all new building 

construction in the B-1, B-2, B3P, and R2P zoned districts, a watershed analysis stamped by a licensed 

Kansas Engineer shall be required. The watershed analysis shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

(i) Baseline watershed level as property exists before any demolition. 

(ii) Watershed level with proposed changes including new construction, hardscape and specific changes to 

grades. 

(iii) Impact to immediate surrounding properties. 

(iv) A determination that the new construction will not adversely impact adjoining or downstream property. 

 

The watershed analysis shows the proposed hardscape decreased from 38.7% to 38.6% and the report 

proposes to install a swale along the south property line to the southwest lot corner. The proposed site 

continues to flow as the existing. 

 

Code Section 15-296. – Dimension Standards 

Meets all requirements 

 

Code Section 15-297. – Site Design Standards. 

(a) Lot design. 

e. Large shade trees. Large shade trees shall be maintained or established between the front building line 

and street in accordance with the following requirements:  

1. All lots shall have at least one (1) large shade tree for every forty feet (40') of street 
frontage, or fraction thereof. Existing large shade trees, including any large shade trees in 
the right-of-way, may be counted towards this requirement.  

2. Removal of an existing large shade tree that results in less than one (1) per forty feet (40') 
of street frontage shall require replacement of two (2) new large shade trees for each one 
(1) tree removed.  

3. Large shade trees shall be planted between the front building line and the street.  

4. Large shade trees species shall be selected from the "Great Trees for the Kansas City 
Region" guide and the "Large Trees for the Landscape" list.  

5. Any new trees required to be planted shall be at least three inch (3") caliper.  

Applicant is removing a large shade tree and will be required to plant two new large shade trees        

(b) Building design 

(5) Building façades. The following design standards shall be used to organize the composition of façades 
consistent with the architectural style of the home and provide details that relate buildings to the 
neighborhood streetscapes and adjacent sites. 

b. All façades shall have window or door openings covering at least fifteen percent (15%) of the façade 

above grade. The shape, style, and placement of windows and doors shall not be inconsistent with the 

architectural style of the home. In the event of an addition to an existing structure, this requirement 

may apply to the least restrictive of: (1) the entire façade facing the same direction (e.g., front, rear or 

either side façade), including both the addition and the existing structure; or (2) only the façade of the 

addition being built and not any part of the existing structure that is not being modified as part of the 

construction project. (See Section 15-438, Figure 15-438-5.) 

1. Windows shall have a vertical or square proportion, although groups of windows may be 
joined in a horizontal proportion; 



 

2. Windows shall be stacked for two-story façades with lower windows aligning with upper 
windows, and have a hierarchy with lower windows being larger than upper windows; 

The applicant is seeking an exception for the front, right & left elevation façades for having to the upper 

windows not aligning with the lower windows. 

 

  (d) Exceptions. Through the site plan process, the Planning Commission may grant exceptions to the site 
design standards in this Section 15-297, based upon the following criteria:  

(1) The exception will equally or better serve the intent statements for the particular standards being 
altered;  

(2) The exception meets any specific exception criteria identified in the standards, but shall not be granted 
to allow something that is specifically prohibited in the zoning regulations;  

(3) Any lot design exception is consistent with sound planning, urban design and engineering practices 
when considering the site and its context within the neighborhood;  

(4) Any building design exception is consistent with the common characteristics of the architectural style 
applied to the overall design of the building; and  

(5) The requested exception coordinates quality design of the building and site—primarily considering the 
integrity of the architectural style, the energy performance of the site and building orientation, and the 
relationship of the internal function of the building to the site, streetscape and adjacent property.  

Applicant seeking exception to Sec. 15-297(b)(5)(b) above.   

 

Code Section 15-235. – Site plan review. 

(d) Review criteria. In considering any application for site plan approval, the review body shall give 

consideration to the criteria stated below, to the extent they are pertinent to the particular application. In 

addition, the review body may consider other factors which may be relevant to a particular application. 

(1) Whether the site is capable of accommodating the buildings, parking areas and drives with appropriate 

open space. 

(2) Whether the plan provides for safe and easy ingress, egress and internal traffic circulation, and 

adequate access vehicles, pedestrians, and emergency service to all parts of the property and of all 

buildings and structures on the property. 

(3) Whether the plan is consistent with good land planning and site engineering design principles. 

(4) Whether an appropriate degree of harmony will prevail between the architectural quality and building 

materials of the proposed buildings and those of the surrounding neighborhood. 

(5) The character of the neighborhood. 

(6) The zoning and use of nearby properties, and the extent to which the proposed use would be in harmony 

with such zoning and uses. 

(7) The suitability of the property for the uses to which it has been restricted under the applicable zoning 

district regulations. 

(8) The length of time the property has remained vacant. 

(9) The extent to which approval of the application would detrimentally affect nearby properties. 

(10) The extent to which the proposed use and plan would substantially harm the value of nearby properties. 

(11) The extent to which the proposed use and plan would adversely affect the capacity or safety of that 

portion of the road network influenced by the use, or present parking problems in the vicinity of the 

property. 

(12) The extent to which utilities and services, including, but not limited to, sewers, water service, police and 

fire protection, and parks and recreation facilities, are available and adequate to serve the proposed use. 



 

(13) The extent to which the proposed use and plan would create excessive stormwater runoff, air pollution, 

water pollution, noise pollution or other environmental harm. 

(14) The extent to which there is a need for the use in the community. 

(15) The economic impact of the proposed use and plan on the community. 

(16) The ability of the applicant to satisfy any requirements applicable to the specific use imposed pursuant 

to the zoning district regulations. 

(17) The gain, if any, to the public health, safety and welfare due to denial of the application as compared to 

the hardship imposed upon the landowner, if any, as a result of denial of the application. 

(18) The conformance of the proposed use and plan to the City's Comprehensive Plan, and other adopted 

planning policies. 

(19) The recommendation of professional staff, or other professionals retained by the City to evaluate the 

application. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is not opposed to the application and exception request. If the Planning Commission grants approval, 

staff recommends the following conditions:   

1. One electronic set must be submitted for plan review and approval. 

2. Building permit must be obtained and fees paid, as required by City Code. 

3. Project must comply with all City ordinances and the 2012 International Building Code, the 2012 

International Building Code and other incorporated technical codes.   

4. Application and approval are void if a building permit is not obtained within one year from the date of 

Planning Commission approval. 

5. Plant two large shade trees in front the front building line. 













consulting engineer

EMAIL robertcwessel47@gmail.com

TUCSON, ARIZONA 85750
913-207-6118 

4085 NORTH KOLB ROAD

09/26/25

7183

NE SC EDIL

NAK SAS

RO

BER
T

P

LE
SSE

W

ROFESSIONAL ENG
IN
EE

R

C

XXXXXXXXX

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

X
X

X

X
X

X

EDGE OF DRIVEWAY

EG=960.8

EG=959.8

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

TC=963.17

TC=961.91

N87°05'14"E  130.00'

N87°05'14"E  130.00'

S2
°0

4'
31

"E
60

.0
0'

S2
°0

4'
31

"E
60

.0
0'

S2
°0

4'
31

"E
12

0.
00

'

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-26-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
6018 BUENA VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCW0311

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX/XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUES / REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD BK./PG.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIRWAY, KANSAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT C. WESSEL P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"= 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 100 = 0.098 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 25 = 0.067 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 10 = 0.052 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 2 = 0.028 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q2 = 0.57 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q10 = 1.04 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q25 = 1.31 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q100 = 1.87 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LOT DRAINAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LOT DRAINAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA = 7,800 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA=7,800 S.F.;

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS AREA = 3,017.2 S.F.; 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS AREA = 3,017.2 S.F.; (38.7%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA=0 S.F.;

AutoCAD SHX Text
CN=83;

AutoCAD SHX Text
12214 W. 79th Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text
apd_studios+

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAM ANTHONY PFEIFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUENA VISTA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING HOUSE 6018 BUENA VISTA ST FF=964.2 TF=963.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6024 BUENA VISTA ST. FF=963.4 TF=962.4 RIDGE=987.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6024 BUENA VISTA ST. FF=965.0 TF=964.5 RIDGE=979.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MTM1 (22)195 TOP=961.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
961

AutoCAD SHX Text
962

AutoCAD SHX Text
963

AutoCAD SHX Text
960

AutoCAD SHX Text
961

AutoCAD SHX Text
962



7183

NE SC EDIL

NAK SAS

RO

BER
T

P

LE
SSE

W

ROFESSIONAL ENG
IN
EE

R

C

consulting engineer

EMAIL robertcwessel47@gmail.com

TUCSON, ARIZONA 85750
913-207-6118 

4085 NORTH KOLB ROAD

960
961

962

963

963

962
961

960

EDGE OF DRIVEWAY

963

963

962

961

960

09/26/25

N87°05'14"E  130.00'

N87°05'14"E  130.00'

S2
°0

4'
31

"E
60

.0
0'

S2
°0

4'
31

"E
60

.0
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCW

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCW0311

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX/XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUES / REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD BK./PG.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIRWAY, KANSAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROBERT C. WESSEL P.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL SCALE: 1"= 20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS AREA = 3,012.2 S.F.; (38.6%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LOT DRAINAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LOT DRAINAGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CN=83;

AutoCAD SHX Text
12214 W. 79th Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text
apd_studios+

AutoCAD SHX Text
NCARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAM ANTHONY PFEIFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENEXA, KANSAS 66215

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED HOUSE 6018 BUENA VISTA ST FF=965.0 TF=963.8 GF=963.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT AREA = 7,800 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA=0 S.F.;

AutoCAD SHX Text
DA=7,800 S.F.;

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERVIOUS AREA = 3,012.2 S.F.;

AutoCAD SHX Text
09-26-25

AutoCAD SHX Text
6018 BUENA VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 100 = 0.098 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 25 = 0.067 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 10 = 0.052 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL 2 = 0.028 ac-ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q2 = 0.57 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q10 = 1.04 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q25 = 1.31 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
Q100 = 1.87 cfs

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE 6" MINIMUM DEPTH SWALE





 

 

 
M E M O  

 
 

TO:  Chairwoman Bailey and Planning Commissioners 
  Anna Krstulic, Zoning Counsel 
  Basil Alani, Community Development Director 
 
FROM: Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk 
 
RE:  Annual Review of Planning Commission By-Laws 

 
 
Chairman and Commissioners, 
 
Per the By-Laws, the Commission shall review and approve the By-Laws in June of 
every year. That review did not occur; it has been added to the October Agenda. 
 
 
Attached are the By-Laws for annual review. 
 
 
 
 
 
















	PC10272025agenda
	PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
	CITY OF FAIRWAY, KANSAS
	3. OLD BUSINESS
	a. Site Plan Review – 3517 Eastvale, Fairway, KS as submitted by D. Lance Larson, Property Owner, request exception to greenspace requirement for an addition and pool – application withdrawn
	b. Site Plan Review - 5500 Canterbury, Fairway, KS as submitted by Brian Standley of James Engle Custom Homes, Property Owner, request for new Single-Family Residence with exceptions to the window hierarchy on the side elevations.
	4. NEW BUSINESS
	a. Site Plan Review – 5300 Pawnee Ln, Fairway, KS as submitted by Spencer and Logan Dean, Property Owners, request exception to fence location on a corner lot
	b. Site Plan Review – 6018 Buena Vista St, Fairway KS as submitted by Adam Anthony Pfeifer of APD Studios on behalf Matt Adam Development Co. Inc., Property Owner, request for a new Single-Family Residence with exceptions to the window hierarchy on fr...
	c. Review Planning Commission By-Laws
	5. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS
	6. ADJOURNMENT

	September 29  2025 Planning Commission Minutes
	MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

	5500 Canterbury for packet
	5500 Canterburry
	plans for packet 11 x 17
	5500 Canterbury watershed
	5500 Canterburry staff report in word
	FWY6B6 5500 Canterbury Rd. Engle Final Site Norfolk 25.0818
	11 x 17 facades
	11 x 17 drainage plan
	DRAINAGE REPORT 5500 Canterbury Rd.082425-Model
	Sheets and Views
	Model




	5300 Pawnee Ln for packet
	5300 Pawnee Ln - Exception for Fence Setback
	Sec. 15-235. Site plan review.

	Plan & photos for packet

	6018 Buena Vista St
	11X17 plans 6018 Buena Vista
	EXISTING CONDITIONS 6018 BUENA VISTA FAIRWAY 092625-Model
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	PROPOSED CONDITIONS 6018 BUENA VISTA FAIRWAY 092625-Model
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	DRAINAGE REPORT 6018 BUENA VISTA FAIRWAY 092625-Model
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	Bookmarks from DRAINAGE REPORT 6018 BUENA VISTA FAIRWAY 092625-Model backup.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	PC memo-By-Laws
	PC BYLAWS  APPROVED Aug 2024

